
 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday September 16th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the September 16th, 2024 Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS  

 
ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 

a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  
Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others 

b. Mail        •MMA Letter     •York County Sheriff Report       

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any – Email from Tony Vigue 
b. GMFR – Approval of invoice out of GMFR Hydrant Reserve 
c. Review/ Approve Timber Harvest Bids 
d. Review Quote for Replacement Bridge at Bunganut Park 
e. Joseph Wagner & Karen Kane – AARP Elder Friendly Letter and Elder Services Recommendations 

 
ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a. Fire Chief – All Hands 
b. Fire Commission Updates – Victoria Gavel 
c. Eco Maine Rep Updates – Amber Swett 
d. Treasurer Expense Report 
e. Town Clerk – Excise Report 

 
ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Committee Applicants 
o Comprehensive Plan Committee 
o Buildings & Grounds Committee 
o Bunganut Park Ad Hoc Committee 

b. Review/ Approve Contingency Agreement for Goodwins Mills Cemtery Association 
c. Review/ Approve Contingency Agreement for Land Swap for Town Hall Expansion 
d. Review/Approve Certificate of Settlement 

ITEM #6 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 9/3/2024 

ITEM #7  SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #11 in the amount of $31,012.27 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #56 (FY2024) in the amount of $336,657.28 
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #12 (FY2025) in the amount of $69,737.27 

 
 

OTHER 

 
ADJOURN 



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail

COPY



COPY



COPY



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail







From: Tony Vigue
To: Town Manager; Bradley Morin
Subject: Re: Lyman Franchise Update
Date: Sunday, September 1, 2024 4:13:40 PM
Attachments: AG Letter re LD 1967 - Final Signed.pdf


Hi Lindsay and Brad,

Discouraging news, see attached August 1 letter from the cable
industry to the Attorney General which implies litigation if Maine
moves forward with the new law (LD1967) that went into effect
August 9.

Brad can confirm but litigation could possibly include any town that
implements the requirements of the new law in their renewal franchise.
That’s the implied threat they always use anyway. 

I received the attached copy last Friday from the sponsor of the bill,
Rep. Melanie Sachs and I have since communicated to Kate Dufour
and Laura Ellis at MMA and Kiera Reardon at the Maine Connectivity
Authority that I am recommending a pause in franchise renewal
negotiations for the 6 Towns that I am assisting until the AG, MMA,
MCA or the PUC can step in with a legal opinion regarding this letter.
Other towns will probably follow suit, the GPCOG consortium of 12
Cumberland county towns is reviewing this now.

I can tell you that the arguments the industry presents are the same
arguments they presented before the Legislature, the AG, MMA, the
MCA THE MBA and the PUC all signed on in support of the
legislation. The industry lost the last two appeals on prior franchise
related legislation that was passed into law but they have deep pockets
and always challenge any new law that might impact their profits and
benefits the municipality and subscribers. 

The bottom line, as we have always said, is that publicly owned
property (the dusty side of the road) is being used by an unregulated
commercial entity for entertainment purposes and the Cable Act

ITEM #3 (a.) Franchise Updates

mailto:tvigue1@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:bmorin@bourqueclegg.com



 


 


 


 


 


August 1, 2024 


Attorney General Aaron Frey 
6 State House Station 
Augusta, ME 04333 


Dear Attorney General Frey: 


We write on behalf of the undersigned four companies concerning LD 1967, “An Act to Support 
Municipal Franchise Agreements” (“Franchise Act”).  Peacock TV, LLC (“Peacock”) and Xumo 
LLC (“Xumo”) are internet-based operators that offer streaming video services to Maine 
consumers.  Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc. (“Comcast”) and Spectrum Northeast, LLC 
(“Charter”) are cable system operators in Maine that also provide internet access services and 
offer streaming video services, in addition to traditional cable television services.  The Franchise 
Act singles out these four companies for a host of new regulatory conditions on their provision of 
video programming via the Internet to Maine consumers, including mandated carriage of certain 
programming content.  


The Franchise Act is scheduled to take effect on or about August 9, 2024.  We respectfully 
request that you refrain from enforcing the Franchise Act based on your authority and discretion 
as Attorney General, consistent with the position you took in declining further defense of 
Maine’s recent a la carte law singling out cable operators. 


Much like the a la carte law singled out cable operators alone for speech regulation while 
leaving their competitors untouched, the Franchise Act singles out the internet-based video 
streaming services of just these four companies for speech regulation while leaving all other 
streaming services unregulated.  Specifically, by tying its definition of “video service provider” 
to a streaming service’s corporate affiliation with an entity that installs facilities in public rights-
of-way in a Maine municipality, the Franchise Act appears to effectively require only Comcast, 
Peacock TV (a Comcast affiliate), Charter, and Xumo (a joint venture co-owned by Comcast and 
Charter) to enter into or have in place franchise agreements with municipalities prior to 
providing their video programming via the internet to Maine residents.  Municipalities may then 
use such franchise agreements to require these four companies to carry community-specific 
public, educational, and governmental (“PEG”) programming and to pay franchise and PEG 
support fees.  The Franchise Act also imposes new notice, customer service, and privacy 
requirements on streaming services provided by these four companies.  And it makes a failure to 
comply with any of these new  conditions a violation of the Maine Unfair Trade Practices Act 







Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 2 


 


enforceable by the Attorney General.1  No other internet-based video programming providers 
are subject to these compelled speech mandates, fees, and other regulatory costs and burdens. 


This singling out of four streaming services from the hundreds of other internet-based streaming 
services, satellite services, and broadcast services against which they compete head-to-head for 
viewers is as discriminatory and underinclusive as the cable a la carte law.  Despite a lack of 
clarity in the Franchise Act’s terms, it appears to impose significant economic and technical 
burdens on these four companies, while leaving their direct competitors unaffected.2  For 
example, as the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) has recognized, negotiating new 
franchises on a municipality-by-municipality basis “is a time-consuming and expensive process 
that has a chilling effect on competitors.”3  The Franchise Act likewise creates monumental 
technical challenges by apparently requiring the incorporation and targeted delivery of local 
Maine PEG programming over the four companies’ internet-based national streaming service 
platforms.  Substantial operational changes would be required, as well, to comply with the new 
notice and customer service requirements.  Depending on whether and how the State elects to 
interpret and enforce the Act, the undersigned would have to seriously consider discontinuing the 
provision of some or all of their internet-based streaming services in Maine.    


We and others informed Maine legislators of the fatal legal problems with the Franchise Act 
prior to its passage.  These include: 


 Singling out these four streaming service providers for substantial new regulatory 
burdens and costs violates the First Amendment.  There are hundreds of internet-
based, satellite, and broadcast video services, yet the Franchise Act singles out the 
services of the undersigned four companies, based on their affiliation with an internet 
service provider (“ISP”) in Maine, and subjects them to the full slate of the State’s 
traditional cable franchising laws.  All of their other direct competitors are left 
unregulated.  As the First Circuit held in striking down Maine’s cable a la carte law, such 
“singl[ing] out” of certain speakers while leaving “similarly situated internet- and 
satellite-based operators untouched” is subject to heightened scrutiny under the First 
Amendment.4  Maine cannot demonstrate that this arbitrary, underinclusive regulation of 
these four entities is the least restrictive means of serving a compelling governmental 
interest.  Rather, it would simply drive these disfavored video services from the Maine 


 
1 See 5 M.R.S.A. §§ 207, 209.  


2 To the extent the Attorney General believes the Franchise Act does not impose or authorize municipalities to 
impose such new obligations, we request written confirmation of that position.  Through this letter, the undersigned 
do not waive and hereby expressly reserve any potential alternative interpretations of or legal arguments regarding 
the Franchise Act.  


3 First Section 621 Order, 22 FCC Rcd. 5101 ¶ 15 (2007); see also id. ¶ 22 (finding that, in 2007, 90 percent of 
franchise negotiations took longer than one year). 


4 Comcast of Maine/N.H., Inc. v. Mills, 988 F.3d 607, 612-17 (1st Cir. 2021); see also Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 576 
U.S. 155, 170 (2015); Minneapolis Star & Tribune Co. v. Minnesota Comm’r of Rev., 460 U.S. 575 (1983); 
Arkansas Writers’ Project, Inc. v. Ragland, 481 U.S. 221 (1987). 







Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 3 


 


marketplace, harming consumer choice and providing zero benefits to the State or any 
municipality. 


 Requiring streaming services to carry PEG channels violates the First Amendment.  
This form of compelled speech was upheld as applied to cable operators in the 1990s 
based on the theory that they possessed “bottleneck, or gatekeeper, control over most (if 
not all) of the television programming that is channeled into the subscriber’s home.”5  
This theory is no longer plausible in today’s video marketplace.6  And it certainly cannot 
justify forced speech mandates on a small handful of nascent, ISP-affiliated streaming 
services, which account for only a sliver of today’s intensely competitive video 
marketplace.  Indeed, internet-based platforms such as YouTube, Vimeo, Facebook, and 
others voluntarily host and distribute virtually any video content a governmental or 
educational institution or member of the public may wish to disseminate.7  Streaming 
service customers thus have access to a virtually endless amount of professionally 
produced and user-generated video online, including PEG content and similar local and 
hyperlocal programming, without any governmental mandate.8  Against this backdrop, 


 
5 Turner Broad. Sys., Inc. v. FCC, 512 U.S. 622, 656 (1994) (“Turner I”); see also Time Warner Ent’mt Co., L.P. v. 
FCC, 93 F.3d 957, 972-73 (D.C. Cir. 1996).   


6 See, e.g., Comcast Cable Commc’ns, LLC v. FCC, 717 F.3d 981, 994-95 (D.C. Cir. 2013) (Kavanaugh, J., 
concurring) (“[I]n the 16 years since [Time Warner] was decided, the video programming distribution market has 
changed dramatically, especially with the rapid growth of satellite and Internet providers. . . .  In today’s highly 
competitive market, neither Comcast nor any other video programming distributor possesses market power in the 
national video programming distribution market.”); Cablevision Sys. Corp. v. FCC, 597 F.3d 1306, 1324 (D.C. Cir. 
2010) (Kavanaugh, J., dissenting) (“This radically changed and highly competitive marketplace—where no cable 
operator exercises market power in the downstream or upstream markets . . . completely eviscerates the justification 
we relied on in Time Warner . . . .”). 


7 Compare H.R. Rep. No 98-934, at 30 (1984) (indicating that PEG channels are intended to be “the video 
equivalent of the speaker’s soap box or the electric parallel to the printed leaflet,” to “provide groups and individuals 
who generally have not had access to the electronic media with the opportunity to become sources of information int 
the electronic marketplace of ideas”), with Reno v. ACLU, 521 U.S. 844, 870 (1997) (noting that the internet enables 
any person to be “a town crier with a voice that resonates farther than it could from any soapbox”). 


8 For example, PEG operators in the Maine communities Comcast serves have already embraced internet-based 
platforms to distribute their programming.  See e.g., Berwick Community Media, YouTube, 
https://www.youtube.com/@BCM22-95/videos; Town of Freeport Maine, YouTube, 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCL1mVQ53vxg9lWEeYl4z7Uw; Harpswell Community TV, Facebook, 
https://www.facebook.com/watch.harpswelltv/videos; Kittery Channel 22, Facebook, 
https://www.facebook.com/KitteryChannel22/videos.  Others have created their own websites to make their content 
available via the internet.  Bath Community Television, https://www.cityofbathmaine.gov/bctv; Brunswick TV3, 
https://www.brunswickme.org/313/Brunswick-Cable-TV3.  In many cases, the Maine cities and towns Comcast 
serves bypass the PEG framework entirely by uploading and streaming governmental programming online 
themselves.  See e.g., Town of Bowdoinham, YouTube, https://www.youtube.com/@TownofBowdoinham-
uv1tp/videos; Town of Durham, YouTube, https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCIIZXYEmJAVAES1ZSm83rwA; 
Town of South Berwick, YouTube, https://www.youtube.com/@townofsouthberwick8288/videos; Town of Topsham, 
YouTube, https://www.youtube.com/@townoftopshammaine2430/videos; West Bath Town Hall, YouTube, 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC6tu1PIfFGad8-KOl5V4cqQ; Town of Woolwich, YouTube, 
https://www.youtube.com/@townofwoolwichmaine1538/videos; Eliot Maine, Town Hall Streams, 
https://townhallstreams.com/towns/elliot_maine; Phippsburg Maine, Town Hall Streams, 
https://townhallstreams.com/towns/phippsburg_me. 







Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 4 


 


the Legislature made no effort to (and cannot possibly) demonstrate a legitimate—much 
less compelling—governmental interest in mandating that any particular streaming 
service host any particular video content. 


 Singling out ISP-affiliated streaming services for franchise and PEG fees violates 
the Internet Tax Freedom Act (“ITFA”).9  ITFA prohibits any tax that “establishes a 
classification of internet access service providers or online service providers” and applies 
only to such providers.10  It also separately prohibits taxes that apply to services provided 
via the internet but not on similar services provided by other means.11  The Franchise Act 
fails on both counts.  It singles out four internet-based streaming service providers among 
hundreds for new franchise and PEG fees, while all other streaming services would pay 
nothing.  And these four ISP-affiliated streaming service providers would be taxed while 
other similar non-internet-based video services, such as over-the-air broadcast and 
satellite-based operators (e.g., DirecTV and DISH Network), are not. 


 Authorizing municipalities to impose cable franchise fees on streaming services is 
expressly preempted by the Cable Act.  The Cable Act limits franchise fees to “cable 
service” only.12  The FCC, the U.S. Copyright Office, and courts have repeatedly 
recognized that services delivered via the internet are not cable service.13  The Franchise 
Act itself recognizes this distinction by defining “video service provider” more broadly 
than “cable system operator.”  Rather than being cable service, internet-based streaming 
services clearly meet the federal statutory definition of an information service.14  The 
Franchise Act’s extension of cable franchise fees to such information services is 
expressly preempted by the Cable Act.15 


 
9 47 U.S.C. § 151 Note (Moratorium on Internet Taxes), § 1101(a)(2) (prohibiting “discriminatory taxes”). 


10 Id. § 1105(2)(A)(iv). 


11 Id. § 105(2)(A)(i). 


12 47 U.S.C. § 542(b). 


13 See, e.g., City of East St. Louis v. Netflix, Inc., 83 F.4th 1066, 1069, 1071, 1073 (7th Cir. 2023); MVPD Notice, 29 
FCC Rcd. 15995, ¶ 74 (2014); id. ¶¶ 71 n.199, 76 n.206; IP Captioning Order, 27 FCC Rcd. 787 ¶¶ 11 & n.49, 12 
n.65 (2012); U.S. Copyright Office, Satellite Home Viewer Extension and Reauthorization Act Section 109 Report 
181-89, 194-200 (2008); Fox Tele. Stations, Inc. v. FilmOn X LLC, 150 F.Supp.3d 1, 28 & n.21 (D.D.C. 2015); 
WPIX, Inc. v. ivi, Inc., 765 F.Supp.2d 594, 611 n.24 (S.D.N.Y. 2011). 


14 See 47 U.S.C. § 153(24) (defining “information service” as “the offering of a capability for generating, acquiring, 
storing, transforming, processing, retrieving, utilizing, or making available information via telecommunications”); 
see also Safeguarding and Securing the Open Internet, WC Docket Nos. 23-320 & 17-108, Declaratory Ruling, 
Order, Report and Order, and Order on Reconsideration, FCC 24-52, ¶ 129 (rel. May 7, 2024) (finding that 
“applications” such as “websites, online streaming services, and file sharing tools” are information services); id. ¶ 
131 (listing Netflix as an example of an information service); id. ¶ 144 (same). 


15 47 U.S.C. § 556(c); see, e.g., City of Minneapolis v. Time Warner Cable, Inc., 2005 WL 3036645, at *6 (D. Minn. 
Nov. 10, 2005) (holding that the Cable Act preempts a city from relying on state law to assess franchise fees on any 
service other than cable service); City of Chicago v. AT&T Broadband, Inc., 2003 WL 22057905, at *4 (N.D. Ill. 
Sept. 4, 2003) (same); City of Cincinnati v. Time Warner Cable, Inc., 2008 WL 11352596, at *7 (S.D. Ohio July 1, 
2008) (holding that, under the Cable Act, “non-cable services . . . are not subject to franchise fees”). 







Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 5 


 


 Imposing other franchising authority regulation on streaming services provided by 
a franchised cable operator or its affiliates is expressly preempted by the Cable Act.  
As implemented by the FCC’s “Mixed-Use Rule,” the Cable Act prohibits franchising 
authorities from imposing other regulatory requirements on information services that a 
franchised cable operator or its affiliates provide via the cable system.16  On review, the 
Sixth Circuit upheld the Mixed-Use Rule in multidistrict litigation.17  It is thus binding 
law in all jurisdictions (including the First Circuit) pursuant to the Hobbs Act and 
multidistrict litigation statute.18  In upholding the rule, the Sixth Circuit also clarified that 
a state or local government exercises its “franchising authority” whenever it regulates a 
cable operator’s access to the ROW.19  Accordingly, the Franchise Act violates federal 
law by purporting to authorize municipalities to exercise franchising authority to impose 
PEG carriage requirements, franchise fees, PEG fees, and other requirements on internet-
based streaming services provided by a franchised cable operator or its affiliates via the 
franchised cable system.     


The Legislature was on clear notice of these fatal legal problems when it enacted the Franchise 
Act.  It should therefore come as no surprise if the Attorney General exercises discretion not to 
enforce or otherwise defend the new law.  Because any attempt to do so would violate the First 
Amendment, ITFA, and the Cable Act, and would be contrary to the best interests of consumers, 
we cannot comply with the Franchise Act’s unlawful provisions.  Accordingly, the undersigned 
will continue offering their streaming services to Maine consumers as we had before the 
Franchise Act went into effect, which will benefit Maine consumers and avoid embroiling the 
State in costly and needless litigation.    


 
16 47 C.F.R. § 76.43; Third Section 621 Order, 34 FCC Rcd. 6844 ¶¶ 65-79 (2019) (citing 47 U.S.C. § 544(a), 
(b)(1)), aff’d in relevant part, City of Eugene v. FCC, 998 F.3d 701, 715-16 (6th Cir. 2021); see also City of 
Beaverton, 609 F.Supp.3d 1136, 1157-58 (D. Or. 2022) (agreeing with the FCC’s determination that the Mixed-Use 
Rule applies to both the cable operator itself and its affiliates, and applying the rule to hold that a municipality’s 
attempt to impose franchising authority regulation on an information service provided by an affiliate of a cable 
operator was expressly preempted by the Cable Act) (citing Third Section 621 Order ¶ 80 nn.322-23, 47 U.S.C. §§ 
522(2), 544(b)(1), and City of Eugene, 998 F.3d at 711, 715).   
17 City of Eugene, 998 F.3d at 715-16. 


18 See 28 U.S.C. §§ 2112, 2342(1); see, e.g., Peck v. Cingular Wireless, LLC, 535 F.3d 1053, 1057 (9th Cir. 2008); 
GTE S., Inc. v. Morrison, 199 F.3d 833, 743 (4th Cir. 1999); Sandusky Wellness Center, LLC v. ASD Specialty 
Healthcare, Inc., 863 F.3d 460, 467 (6th Cir. 2017); see also Raitport v. Harbour Capital Corporation, 312 
F.Supp.3d 225 (D. N.H. May 11, 2018) (recognizing that “decisions resolving challenges to FCC regulations that 
have been consolidated in a single circuit court of appeals by the Multidistrict Litigation Panel are binding 
nationwide”). 


19 City of Eugene, 998 F.3d at 715. 







Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 6 


Sincerely, 


• i') kl 
,~kr=::: n-~~ 
L-/ ~R. Cbarytao 


Executive Vice President & Senior Deputy 
General Counsel, Comcast Corp. 


o/b/o Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, 
Inc. 


Kli be,41 0 #vtt i5k:---
Kimberley D. Harris 
Executive Vice President, Comcast Corp. 
General Counsel, NBCUniversal 
o/b/o Peacock TV, LLC 


unt S. Brown 
Senior Vice President, Operations Law, 


Charter Communications 
o/b/o Spectrum Northeast, LLC 


( 


Ma cien Jenckes 
President, Xumo LLC 


CC: Chris Hodgdon, Vice Presideot of Government Affairs, Comcast 
Kate Gore, Director of State Government Affairs, Charter Communications 


---.. 











permits municipalities to require a contract (franchise) for that use and
charge a rental (franchise) fee, the same as they would for the
commercial use of the public park. No amount of legal mumbo jumbo
changes that. 

I’ll keep working on the update of your franchise to comply with the
new law and will keep you posted on future developments. Please get
back to me with any questions.

Sorry to be the bearer of potentially bad tidings! 
Tony

On Aug 15, 2024, at 12:43 PM, Tony Vigue <tvigue1@gmail.com> wrote:


Hi Lindsay,
Yes, we are in discussions with Charter about statewide implementation of the new law and I am in the
process of updating the franchises of the towns I am working with, Lyman is one of them, 
I’ll send you a draft when it is ready for review by the Selectmen hopefully in the next week or so. 
We were holding off to see if the industry was going to challenge the new law but so far, they seem to be
cooperating. 
Copying Brad as well.
Tony 

On Aug 15, 2024, at 6:43 AM, Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:


Good morning Tony, 

Just checking in on any new updates. If there’s anything you need, let me know. 

Best regards, 

Lindsay Gagne
Town Manager
Town of Lyman
11 South Waterboro Rd
Lyman, ME 04002
Tel. 207-247-0642
Fax. 207-499-7563
www.lyman-me.gov 

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for
use in matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be
regarded as public records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential
by law. If you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your
cooperation.

http://www.lyman-me.gov/


From: Tony Vigue <tvigue1@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 1:20:05 PM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Bradley Morin <bmorin@bourqueclegg.com>
Subject: Re: FW: Lyman Franchise Update

Hi Lindsay,
You have done everything correctly. I'm guessing Shelley is busy just now trying to get as
many towns to sign their corporate franchise agreement before the new law goes into effect. 
Due to the last (extended) session, the new law doesn't go into effect until August 9th, 90 days
following the end of session as State Statutes provide. 
Sorry, I should have informed you sooner. 
The Generic version of the Charter VSP Franchise that I sent you on March 16th has been
updated as the Maine Model VSP Franchise and submitted to MMA and the Maine
Connectivity Authority for their legal review.
Once that is complete and the law goes into effect, I will provide you and Brad with Lyman's
version, using what we have worked on so far as a basis, but incorporating the new law.
Any questions, please let me know.
Thanks for your patience!
Tony
(207) 642-5055 (h)
(207) 329-6243 (m)

On Thu, Jun 20, 2024 at 10:44 AM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Hi Tony,

I’ve sent this on to Shelly but have not heard back from her. Do you have nay updates with the
new law changes? When would they take effect in July?

Thank you

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager

FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

<image001.png>
207-247-0642 

<image002.png>
207-499-7562

<image003.png>
  townmanager@lyman-me.gov
<image004.png>
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/


concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Town Manager 
Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 9:53 AM
To: Winchenbach, Shelley J <Shelley.Winchenbach@charter.com>
Subject: Lyman Franchise Update

Good morning Shelly,

Please see attached. The Select Board have adopted a Cable Franchise Ordinance and with
recent law changes, will submit a revised Franchise RFP document once the new laws take
effect in July.

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager
FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

<image001.png>
207-247-0642 
<image002.png>

207-499-7562

<image003.png>
   selectboard@lyman-me.gov 
<image004.png>
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

mailto:Shelley.Winchenbach@charter.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/


August 1, 2024 

Attorney General Aaron Frey 
6 State House Station 
Augusta, ME 04333 

Dear Attorney General Frey: 

We write on behalf of the undersigned four companies concerning LD 1967, “An Act to Support 
Municipal Franchise Agreements” (“Franchise Act”).  Peacock TV, LLC (“Peacock”) and Xumo 
LLC (“Xumo”) are internet-based operators that offer streaming video services to Maine 
consumers.  Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, Inc. (“Comcast”) and Spectrum Northeast, LLC 
(“Charter”) are cable system operators in Maine that also provide internet access services and 
offer streaming video services, in addition to traditional cable television services.  The Franchise 
Act singles out these four companies for a host of new regulatory conditions on their provision of 
video programming via the Internet to Maine consumers, including mandated carriage of certain 
programming content.  

The Franchise Act is scheduled to take effect on or about August 9, 2024.  We respectfully 
request that you refrain from enforcing the Franchise Act based on your authority and discretion 
as Attorney General, consistent with the position you took in declining further defense of 
Maine’s recent a la carte law singling out cable operators. 

Much like the a la carte law singled out cable operators alone for speech regulation while 
leaving their competitors untouched, the Franchise Act singles out the internet-based video 
streaming services of just these four companies for speech regulation while leaving all other 
streaming services unregulated.  Specifically, by tying its definition of “video service provider” 
to a streaming service’s corporate affiliation with an entity that installs facilities in public rights-
of-way in a Maine municipality, the Franchise Act appears to effectively require only Comcast, 
Peacock TV (a Comcast affiliate), Charter, and Xumo (a joint venture co-owned by Comcast and 
Charter) to enter into or have in place franchise agreements with municipalities prior to 
providing their video programming via the internet to Maine residents.  Municipalities may then 
use such franchise agreements to require these four companies to carry community-specific 
public, educational, and governmental (“PEG”) programming and to pay franchise and PEG 
support fees.  The Franchise Act also imposes new notice, customer service, and privacy 
requirements on streaming services provided by these four companies.  And it makes a failure to 
comply with any of these new  conditions a violation of the Maine Unfair Trade Practices Act 



Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 2 

enforceable by the Attorney General.1  No other internet-based video programming providers 
are subject to these compelled speech mandates, fees, and other regulatory costs and burdens. 

This singling out of four streaming services from the hundreds of other internet-based streaming 
services, satellite services, and broadcast services against which they compete head-to-head for 
viewers is as discriminatory and underinclusive as the cable a la carte law.  Despite a lack of 
clarity in the Franchise Act’s terms, it appears to impose significant economic and technical 
burdens on these four companies, while leaving their direct competitors unaffected.2  For 
example, as the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) has recognized, negotiating new 
franchises on a municipality-by-municipality basis “is a time-consuming and expensive process 
that has a chilling effect on competitors.”3  The Franchise Act likewise creates monumental 
technical challenges by apparently requiring the incorporation and targeted delivery of local 
Maine PEG programming over the four companies’ internet-based national streaming service 
platforms.  Substantial operational changes would be required, as well, to comply with the new 
notice and customer service requirements.  Depending on whether and how the State elects to 
interpret and enforce the Act, the undersigned would have to seriously consider discontinuing the 
provision of some or all of their internet-based streaming services in Maine.    

We and others informed Maine legislators of the fatal legal problems with the Franchise Act 
prior to its passage.  These include: 

 Singling out these four streaming service providers for substantial new regulatory
burdens and costs violates the First Amendment.  There are hundreds of internet-
based, satellite, and broadcast video services, yet the Franchise Act singles out the
services of the undersigned four companies, based on their affiliation with an internet
service provider (“ISP”) in Maine, and subjects them to the full slate of the State’s
traditional cable franchising laws.  All of their other direct competitors are left
unregulated.  As the First Circuit held in striking down Maine’s cable a la carte law, such
“singl[ing] out” of certain speakers while leaving “similarly situated internet- and
satellite-based operators untouched” is subject to heightened scrutiny under the First
Amendment.4  Maine cannot demonstrate that this arbitrary, underinclusive regulation of
these four entities is the least restrictive means of serving a compelling governmental
interest.  Rather, it would simply drive these disfavored video services from the Maine

1 See 5 M.R.S.A. §§ 207, 209.  

2 To the extent the Attorney General believes the Franchise Act does not impose or authorize municipalities to 
impose such new obligations, we request written confirmation of that position.  Through this letter, the undersigned 
do not waive and hereby expressly reserve any potential alternative interpretations of or legal arguments regarding 
the Franchise Act.  

3 First Section 621 Order, 22 FCC Rcd. 5101 ¶ 15 (2007); see also id. ¶ 22 (finding that, in 2007, 90 percent of 
franchise negotiations took longer than one year). 

4 Comcast of Maine/N.H., Inc. v. Mills, 988 F.3d 607, 612-17 (1st Cir. 2021); see also Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 576 
U.S. 155, 170 (2015); Minneapolis Star & Tribune Co. v. Minnesota Comm’r of Rev., 460 U.S. 575 (1983); 
Arkansas Writers’ Project, Inc. v. Ragland, 481 U.S. 221 (1987). 



Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 3 

marketplace, harming consumer choice and providing zero benefits to the State or any 
municipality. 

 Requiring streaming services to carry PEG channels violates the First Amendment.
This form of compelled speech was upheld as applied to cable operators in the 1990s
based on the theory that they possessed “bottleneck, or gatekeeper, control over most (if
not all) of the television programming that is channeled into the subscriber’s home.”5

This theory is no longer plausible in today’s video marketplace.6  And it certainly cannot
justify forced speech mandates on a small handful of nascent, ISP-affiliated streaming
services, which account for only a sliver of today’s intensely competitive video
marketplace.  Indeed, internet-based platforms such as YouTube, Vimeo, Facebook, and
others voluntarily host and distribute virtually any video content a governmental or
educational institution or member of the public may wish to disseminate.7  Streaming
service customers thus have access to a virtually endless amount of professionally
produced and user-generated video online, including PEG content and similar local and
hyperlocal programming, without any governmental mandate.8  Against this backdrop,

5 Turner Broad. Sys., Inc. v. FCC, 512 U.S. 622, 656 (1994) (“Turner I”); see also Time Warner Ent’mt Co., L.P. v. 
FCC, 93 F.3d 957, 972-73 (D.C. Cir. 1996).   

6 See, e.g., Comcast Cable Commc’ns, LLC v. FCC, 717 F.3d 981, 994-95 (D.C. Cir. 2013) (Kavanaugh, J., 
concurring) (“[I]n the 16 years since [Time Warner] was decided, the video programming distribution market has 
changed dramatically, especially with the rapid growth of satellite and Internet providers. . . .  In today’s highly 
competitive market, neither Comcast nor any other video programming distributor possesses market power in the 
national video programming distribution market.”); Cablevision Sys. Corp. v. FCC, 597 F.3d 1306, 1324 (D.C. Cir. 
2010) (Kavanaugh, J., dissenting) (“This radically changed and highly competitive marketplace—where no cable 
operator exercises market power in the downstream or upstream markets . . . completely eviscerates the justification 
we relied on in Time Warner . . . .”). 

7 Compare H.R. Rep. No 98-934, at 30 (1984) (indicating that PEG channels are intended to be “the video 
equivalent of the speaker’s soap box or the electric parallel to the printed leaflet,” to “provide groups and individuals 
who generally have not had access to the electronic media with the opportunity to become sources of information int 
the electronic marketplace of ideas”), with Reno v. ACLU, 521 U.S. 844, 870 (1997) (noting that the internet enables 
any person to be “a town crier with a voice that resonates farther than it could from any soapbox”). 

8 For example, PEG operators in the Maine communities Comcast serves have already embraced internet-based 
platforms to distribute their programming.  See e.g., Berwick Community Media, YouTube, 
https://www.youtube.com/@BCM22-95/videos; Town of Freeport Maine, YouTube, 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCL1mVQ53vxg9lWEeYl4z7Uw; Harpswell Community TV, Facebook, 
https://www.facebook.com/watch.harpswelltv/videos; Kittery Channel 22, Facebook, 
https://www.facebook.com/KitteryChannel22/videos.  Others have created their own websites to make their content 
available via the internet.  Bath Community Television, https://www.cityofbathmaine.gov/bctv; Brunswick TV3, 
https://www.brunswickme.org/313/Brunswick-Cable-TV3.  In many cases, the Maine cities and towns Comcast 
serves bypass the PEG framework entirely by uploading and streaming governmental programming online 
themselves.  See e.g., Town of Bowdoinham, YouTube, https://www.youtube.com/@TownofBowdoinham-
uv1tp/videos; Town of Durham, YouTube, https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCIIZXYEmJAVAES1ZSm83rwA; 
Town of South Berwick, YouTube, https://www.youtube.com/@townofsouthberwick8288/videos; Town of Topsham, 
YouTube, https://www.youtube.com/@townoftopshammaine2430/videos; West Bath Town Hall, YouTube, 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC6tu1PIfFGad8-KOl5V4cqQ; Town of Woolwich, YouTube, 
https://www.youtube.com/@townofwoolwichmaine1538/videos; Eliot Maine, Town Hall Streams, 
https://townhallstreams.com/towns/elliot_maine; Phippsburg Maine, Town Hall Streams, 
https://townhallstreams.com/towns/phippsburg_me. 



Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 4 

the Legislature made no effort to (and cannot possibly) demonstrate a legitimate—much 
less compelling—governmental interest in mandating that any particular streaming 
service host any particular video content. 

 Singling out ISP-affiliated streaming services for franchise and PEG fees violates
the Internet Tax Freedom Act (“ITFA”).9  ITFA prohibits any tax that “establishes a
classification of internet access service providers or online service providers” and applies
only to such providers.10  It also separately prohibits taxes that apply to services provided
via the internet but not on similar services provided by other means.11  The Franchise Act
fails on both counts.  It singles out four internet-based streaming service providers among
hundreds for new franchise and PEG fees, while all other streaming services would pay
nothing.  And these four ISP-affiliated streaming service providers would be taxed while
other similar non-internet-based video services, such as over-the-air broadcast and
satellite-based operators (e.g., DirecTV and DISH Network), are not.

 Authorizing municipalities to impose cable franchise fees on streaming services is
expressly preempted by the Cable Act.  The Cable Act limits franchise fees to “cable
service” only.12  The FCC, the U.S. Copyright Office, and courts have repeatedly
recognized that services delivered via the internet are not cable service.13  The Franchise
Act itself recognizes this distinction by defining “video service provider” more broadly
than “cable system operator.”  Rather than being cable service, internet-based streaming
services clearly meet the federal statutory definition of an information service.14  The
Franchise Act’s extension of cable franchise fees to such information services is
expressly preempted by the Cable Act.15

9 47 U.S.C. § 151 Note (Moratorium on Internet Taxes), § 1101(a)(2) (prohibiting “discriminatory taxes”). 

10 Id. § 1105(2)(A)(iv). 

11 Id. § 105(2)(A)(i). 

12 47 U.S.C. § 542(b). 

13 See, e.g., City of East St. Louis v. Netflix, Inc., 83 F.4th 1066, 1069, 1071, 1073 (7th Cir. 2023); MVPD Notice, 29 
FCC Rcd. 15995, ¶ 74 (2014); id. ¶¶ 71 n.199, 76 n.206; IP Captioning Order, 27 FCC Rcd. 787 ¶¶ 11 & n.49, 12 
n.65 (2012); U.S. Copyright Office, Satellite Home Viewer Extension and Reauthorization Act Section 109 Report
181-89, 194-200 (2008); Fox Tele. Stations, Inc. v. FilmOn X LLC, 150 F.Supp.3d 1, 28 & n.21 (D.D.C. 2015);
WPIX, Inc. v. ivi, Inc., 765 F.Supp.2d 594, 611 n.24 (S.D.N.Y. 2011).

14 See 47 U.S.C. § 153(24) (defining “information service” as “the offering of a capability for generating, acquiring, 
storing, transforming, processing, retrieving, utilizing, or making available information via telecommunications”); 
see also Safeguarding and Securing the Open Internet, WC Docket Nos. 23-320 & 17-108, Declaratory Ruling, 
Order, Report and Order, and Order on Reconsideration, FCC 24-52, ¶ 129 (rel. May 7, 2024) (finding that 
“applications” such as “websites, online streaming services, and file sharing tools” are information services); id. ¶ 
131 (listing Netflix as an example of an information service); id. ¶ 144 (same). 

15 47 U.S.C. § 556(c); see, e.g., City of Minneapolis v. Time Warner Cable, Inc., 2005 WL 3036645, at *6 (D. Minn. 
Nov. 10, 2005) (holding that the Cable Act preempts a city from relying on state law to assess franchise fees on any 
service other than cable service); City of Chicago v. AT&T Broadband, Inc., 2003 WL 22057905, at *4 (N.D. Ill. 
Sept. 4, 2003) (same); City of Cincinnati v. Time Warner Cable, Inc., 2008 WL 11352596, at *7 (S.D. Ohio July 1, 
2008) (holding that, under the Cable Act, “non-cable services . . . are not subject to franchise fees”). 



Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 5 

 Imposing other franchising authority regulation on streaming services provided by
a franchised cable operator or its affiliates is expressly preempted by the Cable Act.
As implemented by the FCC’s “Mixed-Use Rule,” the Cable Act prohibits franchising
authorities from imposing other regulatory requirements on information services that a
franchised cable operator or its affiliates provide via the cable system.16  On review, the
Sixth Circuit upheld the Mixed-Use Rule in multidistrict litigation.17  It is thus binding
law in all jurisdictions (including the First Circuit) pursuant to the Hobbs Act and
multidistrict litigation statute.18  In upholding the rule, the Sixth Circuit also clarified that
a state or local government exercises its “franchising authority” whenever it regulates a
cable operator’s access to the ROW.19  Accordingly, the Franchise Act violates federal
law by purporting to authorize municipalities to exercise franchising authority to impose
PEG carriage requirements, franchise fees, PEG fees, and other requirements on internet-
based streaming services provided by a franchised cable operator or its affiliates via the
franchised cable system.

The Legislature was on clear notice of these fatal legal problems when it enacted the Franchise 
Act.  It should therefore come as no surprise if the Attorney General exercises discretion not to 
enforce or otherwise defend the new law.  Because any attempt to do so would violate the First 
Amendment, ITFA, and the Cable Act, and would be contrary to the best interests of consumers, 
we cannot comply with the Franchise Act’s unlawful provisions.  Accordingly, the undersigned 
will continue offering their streaming services to Maine consumers as we had before the 
Franchise Act went into effect, which will benefit Maine consumers and avoid embroiling the 
State in costly and needless litigation.    

16 47 C.F.R. § 76.43; Third Section 621 Order, 34 FCC Rcd. 6844 ¶¶ 65-79 (2019) (citing 47 U.S.C. § 544(a), 
(b)(1)), aff’d in relevant part, City of Eugene v. FCC, 998 F.3d 701, 715-16 (6th Cir. 2021); see also City of 
Beaverton, 609 F.Supp.3d 1136, 1157-58 (D. Or. 2022) (agreeing with the FCC’s determination that the Mixed-Use 
Rule applies to both the cable operator itself and its affiliates, and applying the rule to hold that a municipality’s 
attempt to impose franchising authority regulation on an information service provided by an affiliate of a cable 
operator was expressly preempted by the Cable Act) (citing Third Section 621 Order ¶ 80 nn.322-23, 47 U.S.C. §§ 
522(2), 544(b)(1), and City of Eugene, 998 F.3d at 711, 715).   
17 City of Eugene, 998 F.3d at 715-16. 

18 See 28 U.S.C. §§ 2112, 2342(1); see, e.g., Peck v. Cingular Wireless, LLC, 535 F.3d 1053, 1057 (9th Cir. 2008); 
GTE S., Inc. v. Morrison, 199 F.3d 833, 743 (4th Cir. 1999); Sandusky Wellness Center, LLC v. ASD Specialty 
Healthcare, Inc., 863 F.3d 460, 467 (6th Cir. 2017); see also Raitport v. Harbour Capital Corporation, 312 
F.Supp.3d 225 (D. N.H. May 11, 2018) (recognizing that “decisions resolving challenges to FCC regulations that
have been consolidated in a single circuit court of appeals by the Multidistrict Litigation Panel are binding
nationwide”).

19 City of Eugene, 998 F.3d at 715. 



Attorney General Aaron Frey 
August 1, 2024 
Page 6 

Sincerely, 

• i') kl 
,~kr=::: n-~~ 
L-/ ~R. Cbarytao 

Executive Vice President & Senior Deputy 
General Counsel, Comcast Corp. 

o/b/o Comcast of Maine/New Hampshire, 
Inc. 

Kli be,41 0 #vtt i5k:---
Kimberley D. Harris 
Executive Vice President, Comcast Corp. 
General Counsel, NBCUniversal 
o/b/o Peacock TV, LLC 

unt S. Brown 
Senior Vice President, Operations Law, 

Charter Communications 
o/b/o Spectrum Northeast, LLC 

( 

Ma cien Jenckes 
President, Xumo LLC 

CC: Chris Hodgdon, Vice Presideot of Government Affairs, Comcast 
Kate Gore, Director of State Government Affairs, Charter Communications 

---.. 



INVOICE  
Rural Fire Protection of New England LLC Date: 8/26/2024 

INVOICE: 07 

RFP Parts 

To Matt Duross 

Goodwins Mills Fire & 

Rescue - 481 Goodwins 

Mills Road, Lyman, ME 

04002  

Terms Net30 244 Waterboro Road – Dry Hydrant 

Qty Description Unit Price Line Total 

1 
6” Female NH Long Handle Adapter w/ sch40 – 90deg 

PVC Elbow  
$400.00 $400.00 

1 8” Horizontal Strainer w/ backflush $200.00 $200.00 

1 8” sched40 PVC – 90deg Elbow $200.00 $200.00 

1 Misc. (barrel, paint, etc.) $40.00 $40.00 

Total $840.00 

Make checks payable to: 

Rural Fire Protection of New England (RFP-NE) LLC – 170 Lower Sumner Hill, Sumner, ME 04292 

802-828-4582 - dryhydrantguy@yahoo.com

ITEM #3: (b.) GMFR - Hydrant Installation Project



From: Zoë Lidstrom
To: Town Manager
Cc: Rick Jones
Subject: logging bid update
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2024 9:31:58 AM
Attachments: Cover Letter - Beaulieu.pdf

Logging Contractor-Price Sheet.pdf
Priority Timber Harvest Lots - UPDATED with bid info.xlsx

Dear Lindsay,

Attached please find a copy of the bid request cover letter and price sheet that was sent out to
three bidders. We received a response from Beaulieu Logging, whose bid is included on Sheet
2 of the updated spreadsheet, attached. Of the two other bidders we contacted, one was
unable to fit it in in the timeframe requested, and the other had not responded as of 9/10, the
date by which we requested a response. Rick and JAI have a long business relationship with
Beaulieu Logging, and we feel the pricing is competitive. If you have any questions about this
bid or the process, please feel free to call Rick to discuss (office: 207-241-0235; cell: 207-212-
9333).

Thank you,

Zoë

--

Zoë Lidstrom (she/her/hers)
Forestry Technician/Project Coordinator

Jones Associates, Inc.
280 Poland Spring Road
Auburn, Maine 04210
Office: (207) 241-0235
Website: www.jonesai.com

ITEM #3: (c.) Timber Harvest Bids

mailto:zlidstrom@jonesai.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:rjones@jonesai.com
https://pronouns.org/
http://www.jonesai.com/



280 Poland Spring Road 
Auburn, Maine  04210 
(207) 241-0235
Email: zlidstrom@jonesai.com
Website: www.jonesai.com


August 19, 2024 
Beaulieu Logging 
c/o Jason Beaulieu 
48 Beaulieu Lane 
Arundel, ME 04046 


Dear Jason: 


We would like to invite you to place a bid on the timber harvest of eleven (11) woodlots 
owned by the Town of Lyman. These lots include Tax Map 3 Lots 7, 9, 62, 63A, 63B, 81, 
and 88; Tax Map 4 Lot 7-1; and Tax Map 7 Lots 36, 37, and 82. Attached to this letter are 
several maps including an overview map plus smaller-scale maps showing an aerial view 
and lot acreage according to the Town of Lyman Real Estate Tax Commitment Book of 
2024. Also attached is a stumpage price sheet to be filled with your estimates. 


Harvest Prescription 
For each of these lots, Jones Associates aims to retain an uneven-aged stand with a 


residual basal area of 50-70 ft2 per acre. Residual composition should consist primarily of 
white pine and red oak where possible. Jones Associates will mark sample areas for each 
parcel to ensure proper execution of the prescription. 


Additional Considerations 
The Town of Lyman wants to construct walking trails in attractive and suitably sized 


lots with public access. Jones Associates suggests using a forestry mulcher to create a 
rough loop trail around the perimeter of these lots, with an additional cut-across trail 
connecting each side (roughly in the shape of a “Ɵ”). Suitable lots include Map 3 Lot 88 
(an approximately mile loop with a 500’ cut-across) and Map 7 Lots 36, 82, and the 
southerly half of Lot 37 (a single loop of approximately a mile around with an 800’ cut-
across). The creation of these trails should be considered part of this bid.


Especially for lots with public access, care should be taken to screen the yard and to 
keep visible slash to a minimum. 


The Town is prioritizing harvest on landlocked lots first, where possible. 


Thank you for your time and attention to this invitation. We look forward to your 
response. 


Sincerely, 


Zoë Lidstrom 








STUMPAGE PRICES


LOGS (MBF)


Oak Logs
Pine Grade Logs
Pine Pallet
Hemlock
Hardwood Mat


HW Grade Logs (cut, 
processed & trucked) mill 
price less operating cost 


PULP (Ton)
Pine/softwood
Hemlock
Mixed Hardwood


CHIPS (Ton)


FIREWOOD (Cord)


Other





		Sheet1




Lots

		Map and Lot		Account No.		Address		Acreage (from Town)		Zone		Access		Timber harvest?		Fire pond?		Gravel pit or quarry?		Other development?		General Comments		Notable Area Discrepancy

		03-007		136		Graves Rd		4.73		GP		Accessible		Potential		No		No		No		Need to talk to abutter to remove camper trailer from ROW		GIS acreage: 6.1

		03-009		138		Graves Rd		1		GP		Accessible		Potential		No		No		No		Need to talk to abutter to remove camper trailer from ROW

		03-062		222		Old Ben Davis Rd		21		GP		Accessible		Potential		No		No		Potential		Check deeds for access/ROW

		03-063-A		224		Old Ben Davis Rd		26		GP		Accessible		Potential		No		No		House lot(s)		Check deeds for access/ROW		GIS acreage: 14.6

		03-063-B		225		Old Ben Davis Rd		35		GP		Landlocked		Potential		No		No		House lot(s)		Landlocked: Check deeds for access/ROW		GIS acreage: 30.5

		03-081		252		Pig Farm Rd		33		GP		Accessible		Potential		No		No		No		Harvest with 03-088

		03-088		258		Pig Farm Rd		11		GP		Accessible		Potential		No		No		No		Harvest with 03-081; GIS acreage shows approx. 22.5 acres		GIS acreage: 22.5

		04-007-1		2948		Carlisle Brook Rd		27.6		GP		Landlocked		Potential		No		Potential		No		Check deeds for possible access, or request access via Hissong lot

		07-036		670		Davis Rd		40		GP		Accessible		Potential		No		Potential		House lot(s)		Check deeds for access/ROW		GIS acreage: 25.8

		07-037		672		Davis Rd		6.5		GP		Via abutter		Potential		No		No		No		Contact abutter Harmon to arrange joint harvest		GIS acreage: 11.1

		07-082		749		Davis Rd		15.6		GP		Accessible		Potential		No		Potential		House lot(s)		Check southerly line for possible trespass





Bid

		STUMPAGE PRICES - BEAULIEU LOGGING (Arundel, ME)

		LOGS (MBF)

		Oak Logs

		Pine Grade Logs		$180

		Pine Pallet		$35

		Hemlock		$45

		Hardwood Mat		$200

		HW Grade Logs (cut, processed, trucked) mill price less operating cost		$265



		PULP (TON)

		Pine/softwood		$1

		Hemlock		$1

		Mixed Hardwood		$8



		CHIPS (TON)		$1



		FIREWOOD (CORD)		$25

		OTHER		--





Lindsay Gagne
Highlight

Lindsay Gagne
Line

Lindsay Gagne
Line

Lindsay Gagne
Line

Lindsay Gagne
Line

Lindsay Gagne
Line

Lindsay Gagne
Line

Lindsay Gagne
Line



Glen Luce Logging INC 
PO Box 33 

Turner, ME  04282 
 

 

Stumpage Prices 

 

LOGS  (MBF) 

Oak Logs Mill Price Less Operating Cost of $300 per 1000 MBF 
Pine Grade Logs Mill Price Less Operating Cost of $290 per 1000 MBF 
Pine Pallet Pay $50 per 1000 MBF 
Hemlock Mill Price Less Operating Cost of @ $290 per 1000 MBF 
Hardwood Mat Pay @ $250 per 1000 MBF 
  
Hardwood Grad Logs 
(cut, processed, 
trucked) mill price less 
operating costs 

Mill Price Less Operating Cost of $300 per 1000 MBF 

 

PULP (TON) 

Pine/Softwood Pay @ $2.00 per ton 
Hemlock Pay @ $2.00 per ton 
Mixed Hardwood Pay @ $5.00 per ton 
  
CHIPS $0 
  
Firewood Pay $20 per cord 
  
Other   

 



STUMPAGE PRICES - BEAULIEU LOGGING (Arundel, ME)

LOGS (MBF)
Oak Logs
Pine Grade Logs $180
Pine Pallet $35
Hemlock $45
Hardwood Mat $200

HW Grade Logs (cut, 
processed, trucked) mill 
price less operating cost $265

PULP (TON)
Pine/softwood $1
Hemlock $1
Mixed Hardwood $8

CHIPS (TON) $1

FIREWOOD (CORD) $25

OTHER --



280 Poland Spring Road 
Auburn, Maine  04210 
(207) 241-0235
Email: zlidstrom@jonesai.com
Website: www.jonesai.com

August 19, 2024 
Beaulieu Logging 
c/o Jason Beaulieu 
48 Beaulieu Lane 
Arundel, ME 04046 

Dear Jason: 

We would like to invite you to place a bid on the timber harvest of eleven (11) woodlots 
owned by the Town of Lyman. These lots include Tax Map 3 Lots 7, 9, 62, 63A, 63B, 81, 
and 88; Tax Map 4 Lot 7-1; and Tax Map 7 Lots 36, 37, and 82. Attached to this letter are 
several maps including an overview map plus smaller-scale maps showing an aerial view 
and lot acreage according to the Town of Lyman Real Estate Tax Commitment Book of 
2024. Also attached is a stumpage price sheet to be filled with your estimates. 

Harvest Prescription 
For each of these lots, Jones Associates aims to retain an uneven-aged stand with a 

residual basal area of 50-70 ft2 per acre. Residual composition should consist primarily of 
white pine and red oak where possible. Jones Associates will mark sample areas for each 
parcel to ensure proper execution of the prescription. 

Additional Considerations 
The Town of Lyman wants to construct walking trails in attractive and suitably sized 

lots with public access. Jones Associates suggests using a forestry mulcher to create a 
rough loop trail around the perimeter of these lots, with an additional cut-across trail 
connecting each side (roughly in the shape of a “Ɵ”). Suitable lots include Map 3 Lot 88 
(an approximately mile loop with a 500’ cut-across) and Map 7 Lots 36, 82, and the 
southerly half of Lot 37 (a single loop of approximately a mile around with an 800’ cut-
across). The creation of these trails should be considered part of this bid.

Especially for lots with public access, care should be taken to screen the yard and to 
keep visible slash to a minimum. 

The Town is prioritizing harvest on landlocked lots first, where possible. 

Thank you for your time and attention to this invitation. We look forward to your 
response. 

Sincerely, 

Zoë Lidstrom 



From: Karen Kane
To: Town Manager
Cc: Michelle Feliccitti; Holly Spaulding; Holly Hart; Liz Mitchell; Melissa Sulloway; Kevin Veilleux; David Alves
Subject: Re: Estimate 2556 from Sebago Dock & Lift, Inc.
Date: Monday, September 9, 2024 4:29:35 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image004.png
image002.png
image003.png

Lindsay, I can reach out to Nate for that. 

Karen

On Mon, Sep 9, 2024 at 3:50 PM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Hi Michelle,

That’s possible. Is there any way they could give a quote just on that alone? Then I can get the exact price,
installation and all and can give that to the Select Board. They would have to decide if it would come out of
capital improvement or the Bunganut Reserve.

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager

FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

  townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Michelle Feliccitti <mfeliccitti@gmail.com> 
Sent: Saturday, September 7, 2024 12:50 AM
To: Karen Kane <kjkane04@gmail.com>

ITEM #3: (d.) Quote for Bridge at Bunganut Pond

mailto:kjkane04@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:mfeliccitti@gmail.com
mailto:hollybspaulding@yahoo.com
mailto:hhart927@yahoo.com
mailto:lvmitchell88@gmail.com
mailto:msulloway@ymail.com
mailto:kevinv1973@gmail.com
mailto:davida@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://www.google.com/maps/search/11+So.+Waterboro+Rd%0D%0A+Lyman,+ME+04002?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:mfeliccitti@gmail.com
mailto:kjkane04@gmail.com






Cc: Holly Spaulding <hollybspaulding@yahoo.com>; Holly Hart <hhart927@yahoo.com>; Liz Mitchell
<lvmitchell88@gmail.com>; Melissa Sulloway <msulloway@ymail.com>; Kevin Veilleux
<kevinv1973@gmail.com>; Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>; David Alves <davida@lyman-
me.gov>
Subject: Re: Estimate 2556 from Sebago Dock & Lift, Inc.

Lindsay, maybe the bridge with a discount is of interest to the SB?

On Fri, Sep 6, 2024, 5:30 PM Karen Kane <kjkane04@gmail.com> wrote:

You’re welcome! He sent me another message offer a 10% end of season discount.  Obviously, we’re
not at that point, but it tells me there’s a little room form negotiation in the future. 

Karen

On Fri, Sep 6, 2024 at 12:29 PM Michelle Feliccitti <mfeliccitti@gmail.com> wrote:

Thank you, Karen, for tracking this down!

On Fri, Sep 6, 2024 at 11:42 AM Karen Kane <kjkane04@gmail.com> wrote:

Quote for steps from Sebago Dock. 

Karen

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Nate Brooks <nate@sebagodock.com>
Date: Fri, Sep 6, 2024 at 11:07 AM
Subject: Estimate 2556 from Sebago Dock & Lift, Inc.
To: KJKANE04@GMAIL.COM <KJKANE04@gmail.com>

Dear KAREN KANE: 

Please review the attached estimate- 2556. Feel free to contact us if you have any questions. 

We look forward to working with you. 

Sincerely, 
Sebago Dock & Lift, Inc. 

207-693-3625

mailto:hollybspaulding@yahoo.com
mailto:hhart927@yahoo.com
mailto:lvmitchell88@gmail.com
mailto:msulloway@ymail.com
mailto:kevinv1973@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:davida@lyman-me.gov
mailto:davida@lyman-me.gov
mailto:kjkane04@gmail.com
mailto:mfeliccitti@gmail.com
mailto:kjkane04@gmail.com
mailto:nate@sebagodock.com
mailto:KJKANE04@GMAIL.COM
mailto:KJKANE04@gmail.com


Estimate
Date

9/5/2024

Estimate #

2576

Name / Address

KAREN KANE
224 BROCK RD
LYMAN, ME.

Sebago Dock & Lift, Inc.
96 Roosevelt Trail
Naples, ME 04055

Project

Customer Signature

Total

Description Qty U/M Cost Total

LOCATION #7 BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
4'X10' ALUMMIKON DOCK SECTION W/ VINYL
DECKING

3 ea 2,130.40 6,391.20T

ALUMMIKON 2' STANCHION PACKAGE 3 ea 627.65 1,882.95T
DOUBLE HUNG RAILINGS PER FOOT 60 50.00 3,000.00T
1.5" PIPE 60 ft 12.00 720.00T
Subtotal 11,994.15
Delivery & Installation 3 275.00 825.00
Sales tax on taxable sales 5.50% 659.68

_____________________________________

$13,478.83



*Briefly describe your existing community policies,

programs and services that are targeted toward older people. 

Lyman, located in the heart of York County, was incorporated 

in 1780. Some families in town trace their roots back into the 18th 

and 19th centuries. For a small town of less than 5,000 full-time 

residents, Lyman has achieved several endeavors to become an age-

friendly community.  

• The Lyman Historical Society, comprised mainly of

senior members of the community, documents, preserves and 

presents the town’s legacy. The Society’s exhibitions on the 

fortitude of the past inhabitants of our town are inspirational to 

all the generations of our community. In Lyman there is a deep-

seated appreciation for the ongoing contributions made by our 

more senior residents. 

• The town’s Cemetery Committee has assumed

stewardship of 113 small burial grounds located throughout our 

40 square mile town.  The committee’s receipt of a Spirit of 

America award in 2023 is indicative of the extensive work it has 

put into restoring connections with those who made past 

contributions to the development of our community. 

• The Lyman / Dayton Community Library hosts a

number of programs that appeal to seniors, as well as a multi-

generational audience including, Cribbage Club, Adult Book 

Club, Fiber Arts Club and Summer Reading Program. 

• The work of an ad hoc committee resulted in recent

renovations for improved public access to Kennebunk Pond 

Beach, including the installation of an ADA-compliant ramp, 

safety crosswalk, accessible parking slots, handicap porta-potties 

and soon-to-be-installed flashing pedestrian signal lights. 

• The Lyman Parks and Rec committee provides a wealth

of year-round programs for our children. It also sponsors the 

Music in the Park series of free concerts in the summer. In the 

winter a skating rink is maintained near the community library. 

• The municipal General Assistance Program in Lyman

provides services to our neighbors in need. These include 

ITEM #3: (e.) AARP Age Friendly Information



assistance with tax abatements, heating, and connections to food 

pantries and the Federal SNAP program.  

*Identify how your community plans to become more age-

friendly. 

Lyman is in the process of assessing the connections that exist 

between the service organizations and committees that operate in 

our town and determining how an Elder Service Committee can be 

formed to address the growing needs of senior population. The aim 

is to foster timely communication among groups and strengthen 

existing networks. Identifying available resources and coordinating 

efforts are also essential goals.  

Some of the efforts currently underway include: 

• Parks and Rec is in the process of fund raising for the

purpose of installing playground equipment at

Chadbourne Field.

• An ad hoc committee is in the process of developing

plans to improve town-owned Bunganut Pond Park

which includes the re-establishment of walking trails

making them accessible to all ages, installing benches,

improving access to the beach and picnic areas of the

park, improved parking, better access to the water for

non-motorized watercraft and implementing age-friendly

activities / events. Entrance to Bunganut Park is free for

all Lyman residents.

• Create an Elder Services page on the town website to

provide links to the various organizations in Maine and

York County who provide assistance, volunteer

opportunities and continuing education to help maintain

the overall health, safety and enrichment of our

residents.

• Our future plans include conducting a survey, based off

the AARP survey, to further determine the needs, wants

and priorities of our residents. We are also anxious to dig

deeper into the accomplishments of other like-size



communities to gather ideas that will benefit the Town of 

Lyman. 

*How will older adults be involved in the community’s

efforts to become more age-friendly? 

We have the advantage of small-town connections. Concerted 

outreach efforts can be made to notify senior residents and their 

caregivers of opportunities to voice their perspectives, share their 

wisdom, encourage volunteerism and participate in the continuing 

development of our community.  

Starting with the aforementioned survey, we will solicit input 

from as many citizens as possible, providing both written and 

online surveys and taking advantage of disseminating via social 

media, snail mail and make them available at public locations, i.e., 

Town Hall, Community Library and the Transfer Station. We can 

also promote at public events, such as the upcoming elections and 

town meetings. 

*How will the efforts to become more age-friendly increase

collaboration and coordination among relevant community 

agencies and departments? 

Efforts to become more age-friendly encourage strengthening 

connections with state, federal and regional organizations such as 

the Southern Maine Agency on Agency [which, among its activities, 

provides navigation on Social Security and Medicare], Southern 

Maine Medical Center [fall prevention, health screening], and York 

County Community Action [LIHEAP heating assistance, Head Start, 

WIC, transportation assistance, the Nasson Health Center, home 

ownership and repair]. 

Additionally, the various town boards and committees will be 

encouraged to consider age-friendliness whenever making changes 

and/or proposing new initiatives in town. 

*What motivated your community to join the AARP

Network of Age-Friendly States and Communities? 



A clear and present reality is that, like our entire American 

society, the older population of Lyman is continuing to grow. 

Recognizing the need and seeing the activities of other communities 

in York County that have joined the AARP Age-Friendly Community 

network has encouraged us to apply for membership.  

*What aspect of your community’s current or intended

age-friendly work could be useful to other communities in the 

network? 

Lyman can exemplify how a rural town of modest size can 

demonstrate and direct energy to enhance the quality of life of all of 

its inhabitants. Lyman’s work on improving and integrating services 

and opportunities for its residents across the timeline of age can 

foster awareness in other communities that it is imperative to 

strengthen the interpersonal cords that, together, weave our 

collective social fabric. 



Federal, State and Regional resources for Seniors and/or Individuals and Families needing assistance 

during difficult times.  

• AARP (formerly the American Association of Retired Persons), is an interest group in the United

States focusing on issues affecting those over the age of fifty. https://www.aarp.org/

• Southern Maine Agency on Aging: Serves adults over the age of 60, adults with disabilities and

caregivers by helping to navigate program eligibility and resources. Call to start by speaking with

a Resource Specialist who will be able to provide information about an array of topics like

transportation, in-home support, housing, benefit screenings, life alerts, etc. Resource specialists

are available by phone, zoom, and in-person appointments as needed.

https://www.smaaa.org/resources/answers.html

• State of Maine resources for seniors:   https://www.maine.gov/portal/residents/seniors.html

• York County Food Pantries located at 5 Swetts Bridge Road, just off Route 4 in Alfred. The pantry

feeds about 6,000 people every month.  They also have a Pet Food pantry, providing cat food,

dog food, cat litter and various pet supplies https://www.yorkcountyshelterprograms.com/ycsp-

food-pantry

• Maine Health programs, i.e., Fall Prevention https://www.mainehealth.org/care-services/older-

adult-care-geriatric-medicine/fall-prevention-

matterbalance#:~:text=A%20Matter%20of%20Balance%20is,both%20in%2Dperson%20and%20v

irtually

• Maine State Housing Authority:

o Energy Programs & Assistance:  https://www.mainehousing.org/programs-

services/energy

▪ HEAP - The Home Energy Assistance Program (HEAP) helps qualified

homeowners and renters pay for heating costs. Benefits include help paying for

fuel and emergency fuel delivery. You can also qualify for energy-related repairs

if you are eligible for HEAP.

▪ Heat pumps are a popular and efficient tool to help heat homes. Maine

Housing’s heat pump program pays for the cost and installation of a heat pump

for eligible Maine homeowners.

• York County Community Action

o The mission of York County Community Action Corporation is to alleviate the effects of

poverty, attack its underlying causes, and to promote the dignity and self-sufficiency of

the people of York County, Maine.  For example, they provide access to:

▪ Nasson Healthcare: https://yccac.org/health-care/

▪ Home repair grants:  https://yccac.org/home-repair-grants/

▪ Free Tax Preparation for income under $64,000:  https://yccac.org/free-tax-

preparation/

▪ Heat, Energy & Fuel assistance: https://yccac.org/heat-energy-fuel/

• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) provides a monthly benefit to help low-

income households purchase nutritious food. https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-

services/food-supplement

By Karen Kane

https://www.aarp.org/
https://www.smaaa.org/resources/answers.html
https://www.maine.gov/portal/residents/seniors.html
https://www.yorkcountyshelterprograms.com/ycsp-food-pantry
https://www.yorkcountyshelterprograms.com/ycsp-food-pantry
https://www.mainehealth.org/care-services/older-adult-care-geriatric-medicine/fall-prevention-matterbalance#:~:text=A%20Matter%20of%20Balance%20is,both%20in%2Dperson%20and%20virtually
https://www.mainehealth.org/care-services/older-adult-care-geriatric-medicine/fall-prevention-matterbalance#:~:text=A%20Matter%20of%20Balance%20is,both%20in%2Dperson%20and%20virtually
https://www.mainehealth.org/care-services/older-adult-care-geriatric-medicine/fall-prevention-matterbalance#:~:text=A%20Matter%20of%20Balance%20is,both%20in%2Dperson%20and%20virtually
https://www.mainehealth.org/care-services/older-adult-care-geriatric-medicine/fall-prevention-matterbalance#:~:text=A%20Matter%20of%20Balance%20is,both%20in%2Dperson%20and%20virtually
https://www.mainehousing.org/programs-services/energy
https://www.mainehousing.org/programs-services/energy
https://yccac.org/health-care/
https://yccac.org/home-repair-grants/
https://yccac.org/free-tax-preparation/
https://yccac.org/free-tax-preparation/
https://yccac.org/heat-energy-fuel/
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/food-supplement
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/food-supplement


ITEM #4: (a.) GMFR Report









https://www.ecomaine.org/about-ecomaine/news/2024/03/does-my-recycling-actually-get-recycled/
ITEM #4: (c.) ECO ME REP updates







https://www.ecomaine.org/epr/









ITEM #4: (d.) Expense Report

























Report to Selectmen 

Month of August 2024 

2023-2024 Tax Year 

Real Estate Tax Commitment - $8,315,962.30 

Personal Property Tax Commitment – $     37,823.73 

Total Tax Commitment: $8,353,786.03 

Supplemental Taxes YTD: $   

Abatements Granted YTD: $      

Prior Year(s) Abatement(s) YTD: $    

Real Estate / Personal Property Tax Payments Collected $37,609.16 
Includes Current, Delinquent, Prepayments, and Lien Payments for the month. 

Year to Date:  $133,293.38 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

Monthly Excise Tax 

Excise Tax Received 

Vehicles registered here at office:    $124,078.23 

Online Rapid Renewal Service       22,016.02 

Total Vehicle Excise   $146,094.25 

Boat Excise 

Boats registered here at office:    $        212.60 

Online Registration Service   $___    10.00 

Total Boat Excise    $        222.60 

Total Excise   $ 146,316.85 

Excise Tax Reimbursement      $     

Excise Tax Collected by State 

Year-to-date excise collection   $  284,310.81 

Respectfully submitted:  Susan J. Bellerose, Tax Collector 

ITEM #4 (e.) Town Clerk - Excise Reports





Page 1 of 3 

Land Transfer Agreement 

AGREEMENT FOR TRANSFER OF LAND FROM TOWN TO 

CEMETERY 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on this 16th day of 

September, 2024, for consideration mutually exchanged and received by and 

between GOODWIN MILLS CEMETERY ASSOCIATION, a cemetery 

association duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Maine with 

a mailing address of Cemetery Association of Goodwins Mills Village % 17 Lords 

Lane Lyman, Maine 04002-, and the INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF 

LYMAN, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Maine and having a place of business in the Town of Lyman, County of 

York and State of Maine; hereinafter referred to as the “Town.”  

WHEREAS, the Town is the owner of land and buildings at 28 South Street 

in the Town of Lyman, County of York and State of Maine, further described as 

Map 13 Lot 9 on the municipal tax maps, also known as the Rhodes Hall property; 

WHEREAS, the Cemtery Association owns abutting land and wishes 

acquire the above-described parcel from the Town;  

WHEREAS, the Town is willing to transfer ownership of the parcel to the 

Cemtery Association, provided that the Cemetery Association pays or reimburses 

all of the expense for such transfer;  

WHEREAS, the parties recognize that the conveyance of land will require 

approval of the Lyman Town Meeting, and all obligations of the parties hereunder 

are expressly contingent on obtaining this Town Meeting approval;  

ITEM #5: (b.) Contingency Agreement Goodwins Mills Cemetery 
Association 

COPY



Page 2 of 3 

Land Transfer Agreement 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to reduce their agreement to writing; 

NOW THEREFORE WITNESSETH 

In consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, the 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, and in further 

consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as 

follows: 

1. Subject to the contingencies contained herein, the Town shall

convey to the Cemetery Association the parcel of real estate known as Map 13 Lot 

9.  

2. The conveyance is contingent upon the Town receiving approval of

voters at the Town Meeting (anticipated on November 5, 2024).  If such approval 

is not obtained on or before November 5, 2024, this agreement shall be 

automatically null and void. 

3. The parties hereby agree that the conveyance shall take place within

30 days of receiving the Town Meeting approval.  At closing, the Town will 

deliver a municipal release deed for the parcel without warranties of any kind. 

4. Taxes on the parcels (if any) shall be the responsibility of the

Cemetery Association. 

5. The Cemetery Association shall pay all recording fees and all

transfer tax (if any) for the conveyance described herein. 

6. At closing, the Cemetery Association shall reimburse the Town’s

legal fees incurred in this transaction. 

COPY



Page 3 of 3 

Land Transfer Agreement 

7. It is mutually agreed by the parties hereto that no real estate brokers

are involved in this transaction and that no commissions are due or payable to any 

person as a result of this agreement or the proposed sale set forth herein.  

Date:                 , 2024 GOODWINS MILLS 

CEMETERY ASSOCIATION 

________________________________ 

By  

Its President, Duly Authorized 

Date: September 16, 2024 INHABITANTS OF THE 

TOWN OF LYMAN, Purchaser 

By Its Selectmen  

________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

________________________________ 

David Alves 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

COPY



Page 1 of 5 

Land Swap Agreement 

AGREEMENT FOR EXCHANGE OF LAND  

AND ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW BOUNDARIES 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on this 16th day of 

September, 2024, for consideration mutually exchanged and received by and 

between J. JACQUES, LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and 

existing under the laws of the State of Maine with a mailing address of 3 Camp 

Ellis Avenue, Saco ME 04072, and the INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF 

LYMAN, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Maine and having a place of business in the Town of Lyman, County of 

York and State of Maine; hereinafter referred to as the “Town.”  

WHEREAS, the Town is the owner of land and buildings at 11 South 

Waterboro Road in the Town of Lyman, County of York and State of Maine, 

further described in deed dated July 18, 1994 and recorded in the York County 

Registry of Deeds in Book 7123, Page 77, also known as Map 13 Lot 14 on the 

municipal tax maps, hereinafter referred to as the “Town Hall parcel”; and 

WHEREAS, J. Jacques, LLC owns abutting land at 1 South Waterboro 

Road in the Town of Lyman, County of York and State of Maine, further 

described in deed dated August 17, 2023 and recorded in the York County 

Registry of Deeds in Book 19299, Page 649, also known as Map 13 Lot 12 on the 

municipal tax maps, hereinafter referred to as “former Church parcel”; and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to exchange parcels of land (of substantially 

equivalent size and values) to reconfigure their respective boundaries; 

ITEM #5: (c.) Contingency Agreement J. Jacques LLC

COPY



Page 2 of 5 

Land Swap Agreement 

WHEREAS, the parties recognize that the conveyance of land will require 

approval of the Lyman Town Meeting, and all obligations of the parties hereunder 

are expressly contingent on obtaining this Town Meeting approval;  

WHEREAS, the parties wish to reduce their agreement to writing; 

NOW THEREFORE WITNESSETH 

In consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, the 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, and in further 

consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as 

follows: 

1. Subject to the contingencies contained herein, J. Jacques, LLC shall

convey to the Town a portion of the former Church parcel shown as “PARCEL A 

TO BE DEEDED FROM ABUTTER TO TOWN” on the attached Sketch Plan 

Lyman Town Hall, by BH2M Engineering dated November 2023. 

2. Subject to the contingencies contained herein, the Town shall

convey to J. Jacques, LLC a portion of the Town Hall parcel shown as “PARCEL 

B TO BE DEEDED FROM TOWN TO ABUTTER” on the attached Sketch Plan 

Lyman Town Hall, by BH2M Engineering dated November 2023. 

3. The closing and exchange of deeds is contingent upon the Town

receiving approval of voters at the Town Meeting (anticipated on November 5, 

2024).  If such approval is not obtained on or before November 5, 2024, this 

agreement shall be automatically null and void. 
COPY



Page 3 of 5 

Land Swap Agreement 

4. The parties hereby agree that the closing shall take place within 30

days of receiving the Town Meeting approval,  at a location mutually agreed by 

the parties.  At closing, each party shall deliver to the other party a quitclaim deed 

for their respective parcels, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.  Each 

party shall also deliver to the other party reasonable and customary closing 

documents, including documentation of the Town meeting vote, and corporate 

existence and authority for J. Jacques, LLC. 

5. Taxes on the parcels (if any) shall be pro-rated as of the day of

closing. 

6. Each party shall pay the recording fee for the deed it receives.

7. Each party shall pay its share of transfer tax (if any) for the

conveyances described herein. 

8. It is mutually agreed by the parties hereto that no real estate brokers

are involved in this transaction and that no commissions are due or payable to any 

person as a result of this agreement or the proposed sale set forth herein. Each of 

the parties to this agreement shall be responsible for all expenses which either of 

them may incur in connection with this transaction.  

9. Each party may conduct a title search on the parcel to be received,

and in the event that title proves to be defective, then the other party shall be given 

a reasonable period of time to clear said title, not to exceed thirty (30) days, unless 

otherwise agreed upon by the parties.  In the event that said title cannot be cleared 

within said reasonable period of time, then the receiving party, at its option, may 

COPY



Page 4 of 5 

Land Swap Agreement 

receive the property with said defective title. If said party elects not to receive the 

property, then this agreement shall be deemed to be null and void and neither party 

will have further obligations to the other under this agreement. 

10. In the event that a party breaches this agreement or fails to perform

any of the covenants on its part made or entered into, then the non-breaching party 

shall have all available legal and equitable remedies.  

11. The terms and conditions contained herein constitute the entire

agreement between the parties hereto and no amendment or change to this 

agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless in writing and attached hereto. 

12. This agreement is binding on the heirs, successors and assigns of the

parties hereto. 

Date:  , 2024 J. JACQUES, LLC

________________________________ 

By  

Its Member / Manager, Duly Authorized 

Date: September 16th, 2024 INHABITANTS OF THE 

TOWN OF LYMAN, Purchaser 

By Its Selectmen  

________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 
COPY



Page 5 of 5 

Land Swap Agreement 

________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

________________________________ 

David Alves 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

Board of Selectmen, Duly Authorized 

COPY



COPY



ITEM #5: (d.) Certificate of Settlement

COPY



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

September 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 4 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/ 

Selectboard members present: Jessica Picard, Amber Swett, Victoria Gavel, Joseph Wagner, David Alves 
Selectboard members absent: none 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. MDOT – presentation on 4-way intersection proposal at Rt. 35 & S. Waterboro Rd

Dennis Emidy & Bob Skehan from Maine DOT provided a presentation proposing a 4-way stop for
the intersection located at Route 35 and South Waterboro Road. MDOT has conducted various
studies over several years evaluating peak traffic volume, vehicle speeds, accident reports, and
other data. They’ve determined implementing a 4-way stop would be the most cost effective and
beneficial approach. Data from other municipalities shows a significant decrease in vehicle accidents
using a 4-way stop. MDOT would place warning signals to alert drivers of the change in traffic
pattern. MDOT addressed questions and concerns regarding large trucks going through the
intersection, potential wait times and other questions. The 4-way stop could be reverted back to its
original traffic pattern if the change proved to be unsuccessful.

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
b. Mail

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 8/19/2024

David Alves – Motions to approve. Victoria Gavel seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #8 in the amount of $52.51

David Alves – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Payroll Warrant #9 in the amount of $32,308.01

David Alves - Motions to approve. Victoria Gavel seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #55 (FY2024) in the amount of $21,763.37

Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
d. Accounts Payable Warrant #10 (FY2025) in the amount of $815,180.11

Joseph Wagner – Motions to approve. Victoria Gavel seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any

No new updates.
b. Josh Eon – Discussion regarding Town Property Logging Effort

Josh Eon – Discussion regarding concerns from property owners on Old Ben Davis Road. The safety
plan provided by the forester does not address vehicle weights and types of vehicles. A portion of
Old Ben Davis Road is not maintained and used as an ATV trail. He proposes Duke Lane as a potential
alternative access. There was logging done in this area in the past which caused damage to Old Ben
Davis Road.
David Alves – Offers to look into alternative access and will go out to the site location.

DRAFT
ITEM #6: (a.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

September 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 4 

c. Kennebunk Pond – Request for Additional Funds for the Flashing Beacons
Amber Swett – Motions to approve $18.32 out of the Kennebunk Pond Reserve account and
$348.88 from Capital Improvement for the updated quote on the Flashing Beacons.
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 5-0-0

d. RFP – Winter Maintenance Transfer Station, Open Bids
Four Bids Received.

Tibbetts Farm, LLC 

Year 1: 2024-2025 $6,990.00 

Year 2: 2025-2026 $7,500.00 

Year 3: 2026-2027 $7,998.00 

D & C Rubbish Removal 

Year 1: 2024-2025 $8,500.00 

Year 2: 2025-2026 $8,500.00 

Year 3: 2026-2027 $8,500.00 

Jessica Picard – Motions to award the bid to Tibbetts Farm, LLC 
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

e. Discussion, FEMA Flood Plain Management Ordinance extension of 90-day emergency enactment
Discussion the 90-day emergency ordinance enacted by the Select Board will expire October 15th.
This item will be on the October 7th agenda for the board to enact the emergency ordinance again.

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Fire Chief – All Hands – Reviewed in agenda packet.
b. Treasurer Expense Report – Reviewed in agenda packet.
c. Assessor – Summary Tax Commitment  - Reviewed in agenda packet.
d. ECO ME Rep, Amber Swett – Update on proposal for Municipal composting project

Amber Swett – Attended an ECO Maine seminar reviewing food waste. Variations of data analysis
show 20% - 40% of household trash is made up of food waste. There are waste diversion grants
available the Town could apply for and use grant funding towards a composting project. A survey
has gone out to the public. Currently the Town budgets $185,000 for Municipal Solid Waste (MSW).
If by implementing a composting program and removing food waste from the MSW, cost savings
could potentially range between $18,000 to $74,000 depending on how much food waste could be
removed. Maine legislature is also reviewing new laws that may be enacted.

e. Planning Board – Quarterly Report FY 2024, 4th Quarter – Reviewed in agenda packet.

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discussion – Day Road, request to lower speed & weight limits.

Joseph Wagner – States he discussed with the Town Manager regarding repairs for the culvert
under the Bridge on Day Road. The road has a weight limit of 10 tons and heavy vehicles could cause
more distress on the bridge. Excessive speed is also an issue with increased pedestrian traffic on the
road. He suggests placing more signs up and encouraging the county sheriffs to increase their
presence in that area. He suggests addressing the local private business with car carriers and
advising them to stay on State Roads.
Lindsay Gagne – Explains the Road Commissioner is already addressing placement of more signs and
employees are not responsible for advising private enterprises. Regarding the request to lower

DC Property Services 

Year 1: 2024-2025 $14,000.00 

Year 2: 2025-2026 $14,500.00 

Year 3: 2026-2027 $15,000.00 

KC Little Trucking & Excavating 

Year 1: 2024-2025 $12,600.00 

Year 2: 2025-2026 $12,600.00 

Year 3: 2026-2027 $12,600.00 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

September 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 4 

weight and speed limits, this is more involved and requires Select Board approval, ordinances, public 
hearings, enforcement, etc.  

b. Review/ Approve Order for Referenda November 5, 2024
Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

c. Review/ Approve Warrant for Special Town Meeting November 5, 2024
Joseph Wagner – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

d. Appointment – Warden for November 5, 2024 General Election
Amber Swett – Motions to appoint Margaret Macdonald as Warden.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

e. Committee Applicants
o Giving Committee
o Planning Board

Joseph Wagner – Motions to appoint Bill Single as a voting member on the Planning Board 
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 
Amber Swett – Motions to appoint Tracie Tatro on the Giving Committee 
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

f. Cemetery Committee – Request for expendable account for fundraising events.
Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

g. RFP – Repairs & Maintenance for Loader Equipment, schedule open bid date.
Discussion, board agrees to open bids on October 21st.

h. Schedule Workshop in October – Review for YMCA contract, End date October 30, 2024
Workshop scheduled for September 30th, 2024 at 6:00pm.

Executive Session 
1 M.R.S.A §405 (E) Consultation of legal counsel. 
1 M.R.S.A §405 (A) Discussion regarding personnel matters. 

Amber Swett – Motions to go into executive session per M.R.S.A 405 E and 405 A 
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0  

Amber Swett – motions to come out of executive session.  
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

OTHER 

Lindsay Gagne – Suggest modifying the agenda format and put minutes and warrants at the end. 

Joseph Wagner – Suggests doing a candidate night for State Reps. He requests any feedback from the board regarding 
his application letter for AARP age friendly community application. Him and Karen are working on a survey and have 
considered canvasing local areas for participation on the survey.  

ADJOURN  

David Alves – Motions to adjourn. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

September 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 4 

__________________________________________ 
Jessica Picard 

__________________________________________ 
David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 4 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated September 3rd, 2024 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



Employee Checks
1 1,235.44 09/18/24 021  JANICE M AUGER1,235.44 0.00

2 1,708.33 09/18/24 79  SUSAN J BELLEROSE1,708.33 0.00

3 889.19 09/18/24 026  ERIN N CAMARENA889.19 0.00

4 75.08 09/18/24 126  DAVID A CARLMAN75.08 0.00

5 1,293.66 09/18/24 025  THOMAS M CROTEAU1,293.66 0.00

6 886.34 09/18/24 12  MARCEL  DESROSIERS886.34 0.00

7 2,644.63 09/18/24 028  LINDSAY  GAGNE2,644.63 0.00

8 1,944.03 09/18/24 016  LAURIE L GONSKA1,944.03 0.00

9 226.02 09/18/24 117  PAUL  HAKALA226.02 0.00

10 266.87 09/18/24 007  THOMAS M HOLLAND266.87 0.00

11 2,070.24 09/18/24 015  JEANETTE E LEMAY2,070.24 0.00

12 841.04 09/18/24 036  JULIE  LEMIEUX841.04 0.00

13 526.76 09/18/24 125  PAUL J MARTEL526.76 0.00

14 1,394.22 09/18/24 041  RANDALL L MURRAY1,394.22 0.00

15 368.93 09/18/24 19  BRIAN D. RACICOT368.93 0.00

16 226.98 09/18/24 123  KYLE D RACICOT226.98 0.00

17 437.52 09/18/24 002  DAVID W RILEY437.52 0.00

18 185.85 09/18/24 024  JAMES  ROBERTS185.85 0.00

19 154.56 09/18/24 020  DAVID H SANTORA154.56 0.00

20 1,821.48 09/18/24 037  REBEKAH S THOMPSON1,821.48 0.00

21 290.94 09/18/24 40  RAYMOND J VALLIERE290.94 0.00

Total 19,488.11 0.00 19,488.11

Direct Deposit Checks
22 19,488.11 09/18/24 D / D 1  BIDDEFORD SAVINGS BANK0.00 19,488.11

Total 0.00 19,488.11 19,488.11

Trust & Agency Checks
23 6,898.58 09/18/24 T & A 1  I.R.S.0.00 6,898.58

24 1,573.31 09/18/24 T & A 3  ICMA0.00 1,573.31

25 1,276.73 09/18/24 T & A 2  MAINE REVENUE SERVICES0.00 1,276.73

26 1,775.54 09/18/24 T & A 9  MPERS0.00 1,775.54

Total 0.00 11,524.16 11,524.16

21

Total 31,012.27

Regular 0.00Checks:

T & A 11,524.16

D / D 19,488.11

0

4

1

26

Summary

Voided

Employee 19,488.11

Payroll Check Register
10:48 AM

LYMAN

Page 1

09/12/2024

Check D / D Date Employee

Pay Date: 09/18/2024

Check Amount

**** REPRINT ****

ITEM #7: (a.) Payroll



021  JANICE M AUGER1 1,235.44 0.00 1,898.67

79  SUSAN J BELLEROSE2 1,708.33 0.00 2,467.88

026  ERIN N CAMARENA3 889.19 0.00 1,077.28

126  DAVID A CARLMAN4 75.08 0.00 81.30

025  THOMAS M CROTEAU5 1,293.66 0.00 1,927.87

12  MARCEL  DESROSIERS6 886.34 0.00 1,104.65

028  LINDSAY  GAGNE7 2,644.63 0.00 3,798.35

016  LAURIE L GONSKA8 1,944.03 0.00 3,023.96

117  PAUL  HAKALA9 226.02 0.00 298.88

007  THOMAS M HOLLAND10 266.87 0.00 296.04

015  JEANETTE E LEMAY11 2,070.24 0.00 2,952.77

036  JULIE  LEMIEUX12 841.04 0.00 1,145.46

125  PAUL J MARTEL13 526.76 0.00 593.49

041  RANDALL L MURRAY14 1,394.22 0.00 2,151.81

19  BRIAN D. RACICOT15 368.93 0.00 455.05

123  KYLE D RACICOT16 226.98 0.00 247.11

002  DAVID W RILEY17 437.52 0.00 473.76

024  JAMES  ROBERTS18 185.85 0.00 201.25

020  DAVID H SANTORA19 154.56 0.00 167.37

037  REBEKAH S THOMPSON20 1,821.48 0.00 2,822.22

40  RAYMOND J VALLIERE21 290.94 0.00 315.04

D / D 1  BIDDEFORD SAVINGS BANK22 0.00 19,488.11

T & A 1  I.R.S.23 0.00 6,898.58

T & A 3  ICMA24 0.00 1,573.31

T & A 2  MAINE REVENUE SERVICES25 0.00 1,276.73

T & A 9  MPERS26 0.00 1,775.54

Count

Checks 26

TO THE MUNICIPAL TREASURER OF LYMAN, MAINE: THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THERE

IS DUE AND CHARGEABLE TO THE APPROPRIATIONS LISTED ABOVE THE SUM AGAINST EACH

NAME AND YOU ARE DIRECTED TO PAY UNTO THE PARTIES NAMED IN THIS SCHEDULE.

TOWM OF LYMAN, BOARD OF SELECTMEN

DAVID ALVES ___________________________________________________

VICTORIA GAVEL    ____________________________________________________

JESSICA PICARD    ____________________________________________________

AMBER SWETT ____________________________________________________

JOSEPH WAGNER     ___________________________________________________

Put into A/P 11,815.23

Total Payroll 31,303.34

Total 19,488.11 31,012.27

Taken out of A/P (11,524.16)

27,500.21

Payroll Warrant
10:49 AM

LYMAN

Page 1

09/12/2024

Employee

Pay Date: 09/18/2024

WARRANT:  11

**** REPRINT ****

Check D / D Check Gross Pay



ITEM #7: (b.) AP Warrant FY2024







ITEM #7: (c.) AP Warrant FY2025
















